NEWINGTON TOWN PLAN AND ZONING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
September 28, 2022
Chairman Domenic Pane called the September 28, 2022 regular meeting of the Newington
Town Plan and Zoning Commission to order at 7:00 p.m.

I.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

II.

ROLL CALL AND SEATING OF ALTERNATES
Commissioners Present
Chairman Domenic Pane
Commissioner Anthony Claffey-excused
Commissioner Bryan Haggerty
Commissioner Garret Havens
Commissioner David Lenares
Commissioner Jonathan Trister
Commissioner Stephen Woods
Commissioner Stuart Drozd-A
Commissioner Thomas Gill-A
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APPROVAL OF AGENDA
No Changes
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (For items not listed on the agenda, speakers limited to
two minutes.)

REMARKS BY COMMISSIONERS

None
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Renata Bertotti, Town Planner
Erik Hinckley, Asst. Town Planner/ZEO
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Staff Present

None
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Commissioner Hyman Braverman-A
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PUBLIC HEARING
A.

Petition 36-22: Special Permit (Section 3.17.6) for recreational use (Training
Institute & Gym) in the Industrial (1) Zone at 385 Stamm Road, Applicant: Pro
Performance Network, Owner RPG Stamm LLC, Contact Keven Rival.

Marcus Hill: We are looking to open an indoor athletic facility on Stamm Road. We currently
coach travel baseball teams so it would be a facility that would be basically baseball focused
and we are looking to have a gym, a quarter basketball court indoors and then about six to eight
batting cages inside so it's really just an indoor training facility to house players from allover.
It's open to the public that want to take part, it's open to the high school, it's open to obviously
Newington players but our AAU baseball teams would use it for an indoor practice facility during
inclement weather times and then it is open to personal trainers, it's open to people who give
private lessons, it's open to any students or anybody that is involved in Parks and Rec. 1 grew
up in Newington, 1 went to Newington High School, played three different sports in Newington,
this is something that we always wanted to do when we were younger. There really wasn't a
place like it when we were younger so from my experience in the past, going to a training
facility, the only thing that was really available was something like the Berlin Batting Cages. We
have experience with the ATI in Cromwell, Athlete Training Institute. It's one of the other
businesses we had that we sold so we just had an opportunity to hopefully open our new
location and make it available to the public and it's for space rental, it's the unique, the
uniqueness of the space allows it to be utilized by other sports. Parks and Rec, if there is an
inclement weather situation or soccer teams, field hockey, whatever it is, the ceiling heightjust
doesn't have to be specifically a baseball related space. It's not necessarily like a banquet
rental type of place, like a party or a laser tag type of thing. It's just more focused on athletic
development and we've been coaching teams probably for the last eight to ten years with the
focus on trying to get kids scholarships for the most part, so a lot of our players, including
Newington players now that we start coaching at a young age from twelve and thirteen years old
and try to get them connected with the appropriate school that we think that they are going to
academically fit with and athletically fit with and get them an opportunity to be showcased with
their abilities at the next level and it's pretty straight forward. It's not specially, there are sperate
entities in terms of the teams that we coach and the building itself. The building is anybody that
would like to use the gym, anybody that would like to bring their children down to train, anybody
that would like to use it themselves, it's completely open to the public. It's notjust like an
organization type of thing.
Renatta Bertotti: Mr. Chair, if I may, through you, 1 would like to have the applicant state for the
record the name, and the address. We need your name and address.
Marcus Hill: You mean, the Pro Performance Network?
Renata Bertotti: Your name.
Marcus Hill: Marcus Hill.
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Chairman Pane: Anything else Marcus that you would like to add?
Marcu Hill: No, that's it, thank you.
Chairman Pane: Are there any Commissioners that have any questions?
Commissioner Drozd: Quick question, difference of policy from Newington from ATI. 1 noticed
on the amended parking letter that got sent out you said parents of children that will be dropped
off and then picked up by parents so they are not going to need to park? How has that changed
policy wise on your part from when you were in Cromwell?
Marcus Hill: There wasn't necessarily assigned parking in Cromwell at ATI. The lot, the
specific unit that ATI was in the building, it was housed kitty-corner there so it either, there were
some people that parked around the corner that was like on the Advanced Window side, and
there were some people that parked at the first garage bay side, but it wasn't necessarily
allocated toward ATI. This specific building, the other thing is that we had the cage over there
with folks that were using it for MMA training. They had a gym around the corner that was like
another tenant and those businesses, those operations were running like concurrently, so the
parking lot was pretty jammed. At Stamm, none of the hours of operation overlap so 1 don't
think that every single individual that brings their child to Pro Performance Network is going to
necessarily drop them off because the majority of the kids that we work with are high school,
high school age children. Obviously kids that are too young to have their license aren't going to
drive there, so they might get dropped off and parents could potentially stay there. Our hours of
operation are after the other tenants are already closed, so the parking lot that exists now at
Stamm is way bigger, maybe similar in size but there is not going to be any tenants that are
there when Pro Performance Network is open.
Commissioner Drozd: So there has been no policy change from Cromwell, at least as far as
you guys, from Cromwell to Newington?
Marcus Hill: 1 don't believe so, no. We're not implementing a policy to customers to say you
have to drop your child off and leave. 1 just think that if you are coming in for say a pitching
clinic at 9:30 in the morning on a Saturday, there is going to be no other existing vehicles there
because none of the other businesses are open, like there are no hours of operation for the
existing tenants.
Commissioner Drozd: One more question if you don't mind, are you planning, 1 know you
mentioned Parks and Rec, and it was through Newington Little League that I've been to ATI
dozens of times. Are you still planning on having at least the availability.......
Marcus Hill: That is exactly what 1 want to do.
Commissioner Drozd: So whether it is batting cages.....
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Marcus Hill: Specifically right now, this is like a separate issue, but our organization, in terms of
our AAU teams, we have several. We have several age groups, we have two 18,a 15, a 13
and a 12. Our teams right now are 18's, 15's and 13's are ready to start practicing at right now
at Legends from 7:30 to 9:00. So what 1 want to do, it doesn't have to be Newington
exclusively, but this is, ours was one of the first classes to play at Volunteer so, right when it
was being built, so it's very important to me personally to make sure that Newington kind of has
that, not advantage, but 1 know there are a lot of youth organizations that have teams that don't
necessarily have an indoor facility. We don't necessarily specialize at 12 and under so
Newington Little League specifically, it's not a situation where we are looking for those kids to
be part of travel baseball situation, where they are like 13 and older. For them specifically to be
able to utilize that indoor space if there is a weather situation or if theyjust want to have team
practices on Wednesday night, Volunteers is going to be bad, or E Green is going to be bad, or
there is going to be rain, can we utilize this indoor space. We have already been contacted by
the Town of West Hartford to see if we can compete with the deal that they had with the place in
Bloomfield last year, three or four times a month for like six hours at a time. That is exactly what
we want to do.
Commissioner Drozd: The reason 1 was asking is because the way Little League had utilized it,
and the reason 1 had been there so many times was either for batting cages where there would
be a couple of teams there at a time using the batting cages for an hour or an hour and a half.
Then the next time slot back, say from six to seven, or six to seven thirty, then two more teams
would show up, seven thirty to nine. Or, the really big event was for try-outs before spring. You
are talking it's still cold out which is even more people.
Marcus Hill: So we are going to have that, not challenge, but we are already talking about in
terms of, we are playing fall baseball right now. It's going to wrap up, the kids that are high
school age, we're probably going to wrap that season, the last even we are going to have is
October 23rd, we're going to a camp at UConn. That will be the last thing, and then the following
weekend I'm going to book Legends for the 29th to have try-outs, weather permitting. Now if we
are in an inclement weather situation obviously then we would have to move it indoors. Now
obviously our facility is not completed yet, because we're still in a stage, but right now we are
using, Dave Swanson is a good friend of ours, and on the other side of Dave's facility is Soccer
Performance. We have out fitted that situation as a temporary stop gap if we need to move
inside, we will have offensive batting practice. It's going to be specifically for those things. The
layout of the space itself, the reason that it appeals to us, is because there are areas where we
can draw the nets back and it is an enormous open space for ground balls, long tossing, pitcher
throwing programs, all of the things that don't necessarily, they are being used in Little League,
but for things exactly like that. That is what 1 mean, it doesn't have to be like our team needs
practicing. We want Little League to come in, we want to teach a throwing program, how to
keep your arm safe, that we can have somebody doing a specific thing and then in a whole
different space of the building we can have a team practice and they don't interfere with each
other.
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Commissioner Drozd: The biggest concern, and 1 don't know if you processed it, is not from an
AAU aspect, but literally from a parking aspect. To put, at least that overlap, four teams worth
of people and all of the parents dropping off and, especially if you are talking Newington teams,
there out of town teams, and even with Newington, as long as 1 coached easily half of the
parents would just stand there and watch.
Marcus Hill: The layout of the space indoors, we're trying to have that not happen. The majority
of the space, the way that it is laid out, it's going to be used for, it's just going to be occupied.
I'm not saying that we don't want people to stay because obviously if you have small children
and we're doing a clinic we want you to stay if you would like to, and if you want to retain some
of that information to use it on the side for yourself, we're not going to saying drop your kids off
and leave. It also is going to be primarily my job, managing the schedule and making sure we
are not in a situation where we have like, that is probably the number on concern for everybody,
it's making sure that if there are 50 allocated parking spaces, it's just making sure that we don't
have overlapping times. If 1 can schedule, let's say, some of the sponsors, 1 played on Caval
when 1 was in Little League, but if 1 schedule Caval tryout from nine to eleven, and then PAC is
coming in at eleven thirty, eleven fourty-five, so 1 can make sure that people have time so they
are not all there at the same time. Our double headers get scheduled that way now, where
there has to be a fifteen to twenty time period in between so that in a tournament people can
leave and the next team can show up, but 1 don't have a specific policy right now in place that
says you have to drop your kids off, but that is obviously something that is at the top of the
priority list in making sure that the parking lot doesn't get crowded.
Commissioner Drozd: Fifty-two spaces will fill up instantly.
Chairman Pane: Any other Commissioners have any questions?
Commissioner Gill: As far as the parking, is the parking lot lined?
Marcus Hill: Yes it is.
Commissioner Gill: Is all of the area being utilized for parking, because that used to be a
distribution place, right?
Marcus Hill: Well, that is kind of outside the scope of us, but there is a large portion of the
parking lot that is not lined. The asphalt space is not being maximized for parking spaces. It's
just not a need for them right now. Creed, at all the way to the end is a very large space, and
from what 1 know, they have less than ten employees, so there are almost no vehicles there for
that building, and even E-Drives, on the left, the majority of the vehicles park around that center
island, on the front or back, but they is tons of square footage that, right up to the grass space,
obviously that stay open for deliveries, just a lot of square footage that is not lined that could be
potentially be lined, but that is not something that 1 was, there is just a lot of space where people
could park vehicles but they are not right now.
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Chairman Pane: Any other questions? Anything else Commissioner Gill?
Commissioner Gill: Are there any plans on expanding this to have games, actually other sports
besides baseball? Flag football, or.....
Marcus Hill: One hundred percent. The challenge with industrial space, we looked at several,
is finding a great deal of clear space on the inside without poles or beams. The layout of Pro
Performance Network, the beams are forty feet separated, so you have to get creative in terms
of how you are going to layout batting cages and whatnot. We have a plant, we would like to
have an indoor winter baseball league, because with the technology we can basically play a
games without necessarily having fielders, but there is enough long space to have like a youth
soccer game or field hockey game or lacrosse game or even like a flag football, midget football
tackle, it is big enough for that. Then, obviously the long term plan would be to potentially open
up another facility, we don't necessarily want to stop at this one location. We would like to look
for more locations that potentially have more clear space on the inside so we could, we could
have a whole soccer field without any poles in the way, or where we can have like an infield,
outfield practice without having to worry about poles or anything.
Chairman Pane: Any other questions from the Commissioners? I'll go to Renata if either you or
Erik give a staff report.
Renata Bertotti: I will, I'm kind of two minds on this application. 1 will start by saying I'm a huge
supporter of the proposed use in this location. 1 think it is going to re-energize the building and it
will bring life to the end of this cul-de-sac, and it will bring life to this side of town that kind of
needs it. It will being, in my mind, a little bit of hope to that Town Line Plaza which is struggling
a bit and it may kind of re-vitalize that section of the town. 1 think this is really good in this
location.
As you see in the proposed draft motion however, we have recommended that you keep the
hearing open and the reason for that is that we received this information and the comments in
regards to parking that indicated that this is a 65,000 square foot building, it has on this site, 52
available parking spaces that are stripped. The parking lot is huge, it's not huge, it's large, and
it does have a lot of paving, so it does have some potential for additional parking spaces but
those are not lined, they are not shown. We doubt some site plan modifications, so it is
inadvisable for people to just randomly park everywhere because they will be perhaps in the
way of emergency vehicles, in the way of these large trucks that are perhaps up to the loading
docks, things like that. So, before people can just park, on unmarked spaces, it is strongly
recommended that these spaces be aligned and shown on a site plan that is approved by the
Commission. So, that being said, there is a business that has 22 employees that closes at five
o'clock p.m. There is another business that has eleven employees that closes at 3:30 p.m. The
proposed letter opens at three p.m. We had done an inspection today, we went to this site
today at like earlier in the day and then we went by at around 3:30 p.m. About eighty percent of
that parking lot was full with cars, so at 3:30 p.m. that parking lot was really full. The end of that
cul-de-sac also has other businesses on it, and my concern is that if this parking situation is not
remedied somehow, and there are some options that we can perhaps recommend that the
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applicant consider. There will be people that will park at the cul-de-sac wanting access to these
other businesses are still operational, at 3:30 p.m. everybody was still there. So, you could
potentially block access and exits for people trying to get off of work, and these trucks that they
are showing getting in and out. So that is why we would recommend that you hold the hearing
open until either we can kind of show a plan that shows some of the area parking that are
stripped for additional parking, perhaps there is a bunch of businesses on that street that
actually had like vacant parking spaces. So another opportunity would be to approach one of
the neighbors and get one of these parking agreements where we can perhaps, you can ask
them to agree to allow in case you ever have a need for additional parking to allow you to have
like twenty parking space. There is at least three or four businesses that we saw with empty
parking spaces. It would have to be an agreement.
So, with all that being said, you received the supplemental documents, I'm going to ask how you
feel about it. 1 really want, and 1 do stress to the applicant, 1 really feel strongly this would be an
excellent use at this location, and 1 really want them to move there. 1 don't want this to be some
kind of like a block for them, but this parking thing, we went there today and 1 was so hoping that
nobody would be there, and 1 was just going to come here and say, parking is not an issue. It's
a property management matter anyway. The property owner has in his best interest, to issue
his leases so that his tenants manage that, and 1 would like to believe that is always the case,
so the tenants manage that, but just on an off chance, because these times, when these
businesses end and this business starts will overlap a little bit, there is those two hours that
could be potentially a problem and a problem to businesses around them. That is what kind of
gave me a little bit of hesitation.
Marcus Hill: One important piece and we'll probably look into this, but from what 1 understand,
what I was told specifically from the owners is that E-Drives lease agreement, the first building
on the right, they have an agreement that the parking lot is supposed to be repaved entirely in
2023 which really has nothing to do with me because 1 think they were the original tenant, so it
is an agreement that they made, but that could potentially be an opportunity where it can be
lined if the entire parking lot is going to be repaved, they could then look at the layout of the
parking spaces to maximize, to potentially create more spaces. 1 don't know if there is
documentation that would indicate that, or if it is something that you potentially want to look into
but that is what we were told. To be completely transparent with us, the tenants we have been
told on a number of occasions that when we get like a ten year rain there is some flooding in the
parking lot and it potentially gets close to the garage space and we were potentially putting gym
equipment right inside the garage space because that makes the place really unique so that
was a concern of ours if we were going to get rain, so when we just got the really heavy rain a
couple of weeks ago 1 went by the space a number of different times to look at it during the day
to see if the water was backing up and then after that we were told they were repaving the
parking lot, so that could change things significantly.
Commissioner Woods: It is the existing parking lot, do they have enough to accommodate
additional spaces that would make the staff happy with it realigned?
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Renata Bertotti: 1 think it could. The problem is that you would need to see those lines on a
map because 1 need to show that to the Fire Marshal and 1 need to understand the traffic
circulation on that parking lot. As you enter the parking lot there is a parking area that is lined
up where people park. Then there is a fire hydrant, then there is a potential for additional
parking I believe but I'm not sure if people park there if there would be sufficient turning radius
for the fire truck to turn around there, so we would need to kind of see that actually on a map in
order for me to know for sure that there is sufficient space without adding more parking. 1
believe that there is, but 1 can't say that without engineering reviewing it.
Commissioner Woods: Do we know the number of spaces that were looking for the applicant to
maintain?
Renata Bertotti: For them, as much as they need?
Commissioner Woods: Yes, there are fifty spaces there now, correct?
Renata Bertotti: Fifty-two.
Commissioner Woods: So, how many spaces does that applicant need to occupy 14,000
square feet?
Renata Bertotti: So that is another question, so one of the things that we had asked of the
applicant was the size of the large events and then what happens with drop-offs and what is
truly their parking need generation? The statement in the supplemental memo is that they have
ten employees, and they only need ten parking spaces. From the applicants testimony I'm not
sure that 1 received that message because there were statements that this wilt operate as a
gym, that there will be students that will drive themselves there, so clearlyjust more than ten
employees. So we don't really know, we didn't get that answer yet.
Commissioner Woods: Mr. Chairman, if I can, 1 would like to ask the applicant a question. As 1
understand it Marcus, this is a training facility right, so there is not really competition here and
there shouldn't be competition moving forward? Teams aren't going to play against each other
here are they? You are teaching them how to pitch, how to bat.
Marcus Hill: We did also want to offer an option for teams to play each other, but that would
be.....
Chairman Pane: If you were to have an event like that, would that be on a Saturday or Sunday
when the other businesses aren't operating?
Marcus Hill: Yes, so what, the first thing we want to propose competition wise is a high school
baseball winter league where let's say Newington plays Wethersfield. It's all, you know, it's all
connected to a computer that gives you the data and tells you basically, there is a live pitcher,
catcher and an umpire and a live hitter and that would essentially be the end of it, so they
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essentially wouldn't be playing a game, but it would be contained inside a net and because it's
connected to Hitchocks, and there are no fielders, no walks, so everything hypothetically deals
so you can play a seven or nine inning game in about an hour and then schedule the next game
so there is really no overlap with people in the parking lot. Ideally we would want to have that at
a time when there are no other cars in the parking lot.
Dan Garapolo, Reno Properties Group, 170 Pane Road, Newington: l have been hearing you
talking about the parking and what's going on, but we have our own employees there, we
probably have fifteen employees that park there every day in addition to Lenares Landscaping
that parks......this is a very bad connection, I'm getting a lot of feedback.
Renata Bertotti: This is a very bad connection, we're having difficulty hearing you.
Dan Garapolo: This is Dan Garapolo, I'm with Reno Properties Group, we are the owners of the
property at Stamm Road. I'm hearing about the parking and the situation with what is going on,
but 1 don't know the person speaking about the property, that is all our people, that are all the
maintenance guys, the staff that is there parking every day that will be gone as son as Marcus
and his occupancy takes place, we also have Lenares Landscaping who we allow to park in the
parking lot that will not be allowed to park in the parking lot, so the parking lot will virtually be
empty after 3:30, so 1 just want to make it clear that what you see when you go there is not
really what is happening and not what is going to be going on in the future, just so you are
aware of that, it's our people, it's our maintenance staff, our maintenance plus Lenares, they are
not going to be there, so that parking lot will be empty from 3:30 on.
Chairman Pane: So that opens up 25 spaces approximately?
Dan Garapolo: It opens up all of the parking, the parking lot should be completely vacant,
available to Marcus and his team.
Chairman Pane: But you still have other tenants in the building.
Dan Garapolo: No we don't. They are all gone by 3:30. E-Drive is gone by 3:34, Creed is gone
by 3:30, there is nobody there, so it's only Marcus and his group.
Chairman Pane: Thank you very much, that was helpful. Commissioners have any questions?
Commissioner Drozd: Just wondering, obviously we are going to keep the hearing open, but
they are impressing upon how many spaces are going to be maxing out at? Only because, and
1 don't know if anyone else at the table has but I've been to ATI a lot and especially for spring
try-outs, 1 went there this morning to look at parking spaces. That lot in Cromwell is easily twice
the size of the one on Stamm Road, and 1 mean counting spaces for counting spaces.
Chairman Pane: Is it lined now?
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Commissioner Drozd: It really is not, but it would be double lined where people would park, plus
the lines that were against, as well as coming around the corner and for spring try-outs, you
couldn't get in the parking lot. 1 drive two pick-up trucks, and 1 would go a half hour early so that
I could fit, literally. 1 would say the worse would be spring try-outs. The question really
becomes, you know, what is our target? Not just an industrial look for the square feet that we
are supposed to have.
Marcus Hill: Right, that was my question, would it be something that would be told to me, based
on the square footage of the actual space, it there a specific number of allocated spots that
occupancy is supposed to have? 1 know for a fact that we don't have a staff of employees, we
have somebody at the front desk to make sure the schedule is taken care of, somebody
answers the phone, and then the coaches of teams, maybe two or three at a time, somebody
comes in to teach private lessons, there might be.
Chairman Pane: 1 was just going to ask, if you say you have ten employees now, all ten
employees are there at every time?
Marcus Hill: No, there would almost never be ten employees in the building.
Renata Bertotti: If 1 may ask this question through the Chair, there is a number of parking
formulas that we can use. The descriptions of the operation, 1 can guarantee that you will not
like any of them, because they will show the number too high for this property. Because of that,
the Commission luckily in the regulations have the ability to actually consider what is it that you
need in an Industrial zone and go from there because the hard number is, you can only do this
in an Industrial Zone and assess it as per one space for a square foot of a building, or per
employee or something like that, there are a number of things......
Chairman Pane: What is your ago group Marcus?
Marcus Hill: 13 to 18. So you have seventy percent of the people who are going to be
dropping their kids off okay, they aren't going to be parking, they are going to be dropping their
kids off, not parking.
Chairman Pane: Thank you. Go ahead Renata.
Renata Bertotti: So 1 was again going to recommend, those are the options, so 1 would suggest
that the Commission either consider now, you have heard from the property owner, if that
makes you confident, you can vote tonight, or you can keep the hearing open and then you can
consider those options, like going to the neighbors, see what is on the site plan where we can
have some spaces, let's see what we think is needed, how can we do that?
Commissioner Claffey: 1 just was sitting listening to everybody and I guess 1 am going back to
square one, is this an issue of needing an approved site plan. Renata, you talk about needing a
site plan for the parking plan. I'm looking at a site plan on the screen, and 1 see a number of
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spots added. It seems like we are going in circles here. 1 don't disagree with Mr. Drozd, I've
gone to some other like minded facilities like this and it becomes a parking nightmare. 1 see the
concern as a TPZ member, 1 see the concern when 1 have used facilities like this with my boys,
so where are we? It seems like we are going round and round for the past twenty minutes on
this. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: As the property owner has already stated for the record, another twenty-five
parking spaces are going to be available. Renata, you don't think that is enough for, plus, the
ones weren't all taken when you were there, you aid about eighty percent of them, so there was
twenty percent that was still available, and once this new tenant moves in, then the property
owner is going to correct the situation. Basically the property owners and the tenant have to
work together and this business can only be as big as the parking provides, and the landlord
has already stated that twenty-five of those cars are only there because the space isn't rented to
someone else yet. Those twenty-five cars will be gone when this new tenant takes over so, I'm
familiar with the area. 1 think that it has enough parking, but I'll open it up to the Commission
one more time before we go to the public.
Commissioner Claffey: 1 have a question. As someone who frequents other establishments,
not baseball related but we have another facility in Newington, the hockey rink and 1 will say
this, you get a couple of events over there and 1 know hockey is different than this sport, 1 get it,
but they are catculated a certain way to get parking so 1 don't see why we don't take this
building, how it gets divided up, 1 mean there has to be some calculation, correct me if I'm
wrong, of people who come to the facility. If you get fifteen boys or girls, softball,baseball,
whatever, to this facility, there should be a calculation of occupant load for this building, notjust
on if a parent decides to drop their kid off and go run their errands, so 1 can see both sides to
the concern, but if you get two teams to come to batting practice, that's eleven kids per team,
it's twenty-two kids, so why are we not taking the whole building, dividing it up by how many
tenants and say, okay, you want all these facilities in this square footage, this is how many
parking spaces you need. I'm directing this to Renata because I'm still kind of confused as to
what.
Renata Bertotti: 1 will say 1 choose to interpret the regulation this way, because he has about
two hours, based on this letter where there is any kind, perhaps, conflict. Other than that, the
hours of operation of tenants, are completely not together, so I would prefer to use everything in
my regulations that allows me to efficiently utilize this site, so it can actually be used other than
just parked. So that is why I allow the Commission to use their regulations the way that they
can.
Commissioner Claffey: Okay, all right, just wanted a clarification, thank you. That's all.
Chairman Pane: Since there is no objection, since this is a public hearing I'd like to go to the
public.
Renata Bertotti: There are a couple of more questions, Mr. Chair.
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Commissioner Woods: In light of the statement from the property owner who appears to be
occupying a good part of this space, prior to the tenant moving in, and plans on vacating it, and
by the statement that our Planner said that when she went there today she was hoping that
some of the spaces would not be filled, and it looks like it won't be now, so I'm relative
comfortable in moving this forward, but I'd like to finish the hearing also to see, make sure that
nobody is against it, or if there is someone willing to speak in favor of it after the applicant is
done.
Commissioner Lenares: Going around and around with everybody it seems like you would have
to agree that it seems like a perfect storm with some of the parking issues or potential that can
be here, with Mr. Garapolo saying that the utilized parking are his employees that won't be there
once the occupant is there, those are going to be vacated. 1 was at the site, I'm very familiar
with this end of town and this end of the cul-de-sac. There is an enormous amount of space,
yes, they aren't lined, but most of it, or a lot of it is, and 1 don't think what we are hearing, there
is not going to games upon games there, this is a training facility where probably a lot of time
there will be single players, groups of players, but not two, three teams at once. Now yes, there
can be times where there might be some overlapping, but through his scheduling, he would
manage that for his own benefit as well, so it seems like the utilization of this building to revive
this area, it seems like a great fit with what is going on, so 1 would be in favor of this,
comfortable about it, so hopefully without hearing any testimony from the public, who knows,
we'tl see what happens, 1 just hope it does happen.
Marcus Hill: If 1 may say, this is utilization of a building that is pretty much empty at this point
and we just focused on that one thing.
Chairman Pane: Are there any other Commissioners that might want to make a statement or
ask a question before 1 go to the public.
This is a public hearing, we will go to the public. Is there anybody wishing to speak in favor of
this application? Is there anyone wishing to speak in opposition to this application?
So Commissioners, we have to make a decision as to whether we want to leave this open and
try to review the parking or whether or not each person is comfortable with it and would like to
close the public hearing.
Commissioner Woods moved to close Petition 36-22 and move it to Old Business for possible
action this evening. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Lenares. The vote was in
favor of the motion with a 6 in favor and one against (Claffey.)
Chairman Pane: This petition will be closed and moved to Old Business.
B.

Petition 39-22: Special Permit (Section 3.4.4) for a Home Occupation Business
(Portrait Studio) at 24 Atwood St., ApplicanVOwner/Contact Beth Read.
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Beth Read: My name is Beth Read and 1 reside at 24 Atwood Street and 1 have been there for
about eight year. My business is called Beth Read Photography and 1 also have been in
business for about seven years. I'm also a doula, if you don't know what a doula is, it is
someone who assists in births along side a mid-wife and I'm also a photographer so 1
photograph birth. Those mainly happen is hospitals, birthing centers and in homes but then 1
also offer newborn photo shoots. For some reason some times 1 can miss a birth and some
times the parents just want newborn photos so 1 will do those either in a studio setting or in
home with the family. 1 did have a studio in Bristol, but it was in a factory and a lot of people
smoked and 1 didn't want to bring babies into an atmosphere where people are smoking, so 1
closed it, I'm not there any more, it just wasn't working out, but 1 would like to move it to my
home because it is safe and clean and 1 just think it would be a really good atmosphere to work
out of.
Chairman Pane: Very good. Do any Commissioners have any questions for the applicant?
Renata, if you could give a staff report?
Renata Bertotti: 1 think Erik can give the report.
Erik Hinckley: What is triggering that is the coming and going of the people and the parking. So
that is what triggers the special permit request. 1 think that it's a decent use in that
neighborhood, 1 don't see any issues, 1 haven't had any calls from the public to inquire about it.
The parking seems ample there, the studio is into taking up a huge amount of space in the
house, and since these are for newborns, I would imagine a one hour photo shoot or something
along those lines. It's not like you would be queueing up four or five people at a time, it's maybe
two cars coming with family members 1 would think.
Beth Read: Actually I limit it to only the family, 1 don't usually allow extended family to be a part
ofit.
Chairman Pane: Let's go right to the public if there are no objections, is there anyone from the
public wishing to speak in favor of this application? Is there anyone wishing to speak in
opposition? I'll entertain a motion to close this petition and move it to Old Business.
Commissioner Claffey moved to close Petition 39-22 and move it to Old Business for action
tonight. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Havens. The vote was unanimously in
favor of the motion with seven voting YEA.
VII.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Commissioner Havens moved to approve the minutes of the September 14 regular meeting.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Woods. The vote was unanimously in favor of the
motion, with seven voting YEA.
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NEW BUSINESS

None
IX.

OLD BUSINESS
A. Petition 36-22: Special Permit (Section 3.17.6) for recreational use (Training
Institute & Gym) in the Industrial (1) Zone at 385 Stamm Road, Applicant: Pro
Performance Network, Owner RPG Stamm LLC, Contact Kevin Rival.

Commissioner Woods moved to approve Petition 36-22 Special Permit (Section 3.17.6) for
recreational use (Training Institute & Gym) at 385 Stamm Road, Applicant: Pro Performance
Network, Owner RPG Stamm LLC, Contact Kevin Rival.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Lenares. After a roll call vote, the motion passed
with 6 in favor with one opposed (Claffey)
Chairman Pane: 1 wish you the best of luck there and hopefully there won't be any problems
over there and if there is, then they will just have to take corrective action, but 1 think it's a great
business for that area and 1 wish a lot of success.
B.

Petition 39-22: Special Permit (Section 3.4.4) for a home occupation business
(Portrait Studio) at 24 Atwood St., Applicant/Owner/Contact Beth Read.

Commissioner Havens moved to approve Petition 39-22. The motion was seconded by
Commissioner Lenares. The vote was unanimously in favor of the motion with seven voting
YEA.
X.

PETITIONS FOR PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULING
A.

Petition 41-22: Special Permit (Section 3.15.4) Drive-Through Access for
Restaurant Within the B-BT Zone at 751 Russell Road. Applicant: Noble Energy
Real Estate Holdings, LLC. Owner HDC One LLC. Contact Kevin Solli.

B. Petition 42-22: Special Permit (Section 3.15.9) Motor Vehicle Service Uses with
the B-BT Zone at 751 Russell Road, Applicant: Noble Energy Real Estate
Holdings, LLC., Owner HDC One LLC., Contact Kevin Solli.
Renata Bertotti: We have two special hearings, or special permit hearings scheduled for 751
Russell Road. That is the property that has been approved for several developments before
and people are probably quite familiar. It is on the top of the hill out there, wht is the name of
that factory that used to be there.
Commissioner Claffey: Jensen. It's still operational.
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Renata Bertotti: Yes. So anyway, they are proposing an electronic vehicle showroom, they are
proposing a gas station and a car wash in that location, so there will be a special permit for drive
through restaurant which is going to be within the gas station and there will be a proposal, the
second petition is for the auto related use, the showroom. So the tentative schedule for that, 1
actually changed, 1 was first thinking we were going to have that at the next meeting, but now
we are looking at the first meeting in November.
Chairman Pane: All right, very good.
TOWN PLANNER REPORT
Renata Bertotti: First of all, we sent letters out and if you remember before 1 went home, 1
talked to you about zoning regulation changes and actually our staff presented some concept
text ideas for the B zone. You also worked on thinking what we should do with the downtown
zone. We haven't really done any changes but we have scheduled a listening session for the
Commission for the next meeting, so your next meeting on October 12th will start at 6:30. We
sent 200 letters to the downtown business owners and business operators, so we actually sent
letters to pretty much everybody. We will also have a meeting to help us send a message for
the Town Council meeting tomorrow night, and I will issue a news flash to just make sure we get
the word out. The idea is to get people into the room, and ask them what they like, what they
don't like about our regulations, like what is a problem for them? Are there tenants perhaps
leaving because they have some kind of issue, are tenants leaving because of something? 1
want to hear, as far as zoning regulations, if there is a problem for people so we know what to
focus on when we are doing these changes. Now 1 kind of intuitively think 1 know some of this
stuff which is what we first started working on in the B zone, but still we will invite people for the
business zone as well, and ask them what is a problem for them as well to see, are we on the
right track, are we just, we can't do this without talking to people. It's not going to be good
enough product, so that is happening on the 12th, and then we will talk about a date for the B
zone. We will do a listening session for all of the zoning districts.
Erik Hinckley: 1 gave you all a copy of the letter so that you have it.
Chairman Pane: 1 think having people coming in to talk to us about the regulations and what
helps them is an excellent idea and am looking forward to it. Any questions from the
Commissioners?
XI.

COMMUNICATIONS
CRCOG Letters

Renata Bertotti: About these CRCOG letters, 1 will direct your attention to letters from Berlin
and letters from Stafford, and if you look at these two, you will see that CRCOG actually, in the
letter from Stafford used a couple of things that are somewhat unusual and 1 just want to like of
like bring your attention to these matters because this is going to important to us coming up, as
we are working on our regulations and later on POCD stuff. They have, the Stafford for
example they were doing an adoption of the Plan of Conservation and Development, and used
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apparently in their POCD language that refers to community character. They had used
language that, terms that are some kind of tapestry segmentation which implies something that
had to do with certain income population, so CRCOG directed, like balked at that right away and
talked about that. This is the first time 1 have ever seen them actually comment like publicly in a
letter like that but this is a statute and there is reason being issued. Berlin, they are being
advised against exclusionary language when they are doing something with their potential land
fill operations, and whatever they are doing with their regulations in that, they are using some
kind of exclusionary language. So those are just the two comments that 1 thought were
interesting.
Chairman Pane: Very good. Thank you Renata for bringing that to our attention. Any
questions for Renata?
XII.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (For items not listed on the agenda; speakers limited to
two minutes.

Gail Budrejko: 1 just want to comment on the outreach effort that you are making to the
businesses in downtown. 1 think it's fantastic. 1 was just wondering if, because not all of the
business owners perhaps will be able to attend because maybe they are operational during
those hours, or them have other commitments, to give them an opportunity to either write a
response, or to phone in.
Erik Hinckley: They can do either, and we also gave an e-mail address in the letter so they can
send comments or questions to us.
Gait Budrejko: Then also, did you do any outreach, or did you notify the Chamber?
Erik Hinckley: The Chamber has an office, so 1 believe that they got one, we can certainly send
it over again.
Gail Budrejko: They might have some input of their own, and 1 do know that they do weekly
meetings at 7:00 a.m., you might want to attend one of those meetings. 1 think it is a great
effort and I'm curious to see how many will show up. Thank you.
Chairman Pane: Thank you Gail. Anybody else?
XIII.

REMARKS BY COMMISSIONERS

Commissioner Drozd: 1 have a question Mr. Chairman, last meeting we had a discussion about
parking RV's, trailers, whatnot in the side yard versus the back yards versus restrictions? Are
we planning on re-hashing that discussion?
Renata Bertotti: Yes, we are working on that, we are revising some of the sections. We haven't
reached the draft that we are satisfied with and ready to show to you yet.
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Commissioner Drozd: Thank you.
XIV.

CLOSING REMARKS BY THE CHAIRMAN

Chairman Pane: 1 think we are all set, thank you very much for bearing with me, being on
Zoom, 1 appreciate it.
XV.

ADJOURN

Commissioner Claffey moved to adjourn the meeting. The meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m.
Resppctfully submitted,

y^^^^^
islonne Addis,
Recording Secretary

